
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

March 15, 2022 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  March 14, 2022 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PERSONNEL 

1. Hiring of Police Department personnel. 

MINUTES AND APPROVAL OF BILLS 

1. To approve the emergency Special City Council meeting held on December 30, 2021, the Special City 

Council meetings held on December 30, 2021 and February 18, 2022, the Council Personnel 

Interview meetings held on February 1, 2022 and February 15, 2022 and the regular City Council 

meetings held on January 4, 2022, January 18, 2022, February 1, 2022 and February 15, 2022.. 

2. Ratify bills paid in the month of February 2022. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Mr. Chris Duhon to explain a new business venture before proceeding. 

2. To grant permission to utilize the gymnasium area at A. A. Comeaux Park building for the use of 

Pickleball. 

3. To authorize the Mayor to execute the amendment for boiler and machinery insurance coverage.  The 

amendment lowers the deductible limit to $50,000 for electrical or electrical generating equipment and 

increases the premium by $900. 

4. To approve payment number 4 in the amount of $128,250.00 payable to GeoSurfaces for the 

Comeaux Park Renovation Project. 

5. To authorize the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement with the Vermilion Parish Police 

Jury for road maintenance/overlay in District A whereby the City will contribute up to $12,000 for 

materials and the Vermilion Parish Police Jury will provide labor and equipment. 

6. To authorize the Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement with the Vermilion Parish Police 

Jury for work on Godchaux Street at a cost of $14,000.00.  The cost is to be split between 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard, Police Juror Ronald Darby and Police Juror Wayne Touchet. 

7. To approve asphalt overlay projects at a cost of $42,560.00 for Comeaux Park as follows:  Theriot 

Field ($4,560.00), the parking area near the football field ($20,520.00), Brandon Mitchell Way 

($3,420.00), Pavilion #2 ($4,180.00) and the boulevard ($9,880.00).  The expense is to be paid from 

the Comeaux Park Renovation Fund (borrowed funds). 

8. To award the bid to Russell Alexis in the amount of $1,400.00 for the abatement of rubbish/trash/junk 

at 609 N. Gertrude Street. 

9. To approve the liquor license for Mirage of Abbeville located at 520 S. Miles Street. 

10. To approve the re-subdivision of the property located at 1503 Maude Avenue. 

11. To award the contract for a remanufactured transformer to Solomon Corporation in the amount of 

$247,400.00.   

1



12. To approve payment of the invoice from Griner Drilling in the amount of $6,044.50 for repairs to 

Cypress Lift Station. 

13. To approve payment of the invoice from Delta Fire in the amount of $8,052.75 for repairs to the Joffre 

Station truck. 

14. To approve the bid from CASCO in the amount of $62,531.00 for the new Cascade System at the 

Main Fire Station.  Grant funds in the amount of $50,000 will be used towards the purchase and City 

funds will cover the balance. 

15. To approve the purchase of a 2019 Cushman Hauler Pro in the amount of $8,995.00 from Cajun 

Carts. 

16. To open bids for the seized 9MM Glock Model 45 and the 2011 Mercedes C- Class that were awarded 

to the Police Department. 

17. Report from Lee Schexnaider on the completion of Wastewater Basin #4. 

18. To approve the purchase of 15, 3ft six inch MJ Fire Hydrants at a cost of $1,988.13 each for a total 

cost of $29,821.95 from Coburns.  ARPA funds will be utilized to pay the invoice. 

19. To approve the quote from Versalift in the amount of $5,200.56 for repairs to the small bucket truck. 

20. To approve the estimate from Capital Electric & Supply, LLC in the amount of $7,825.00 for an 

electrical panel and the quote from MMR in the amount of $1,760.00 for installation of the electrical 

panel for Sellers Lift Station. 

21. To approve the quotes from Double W Fence Company for hurricane damage repairs to fencing and 

gates as follows:  Lowe's Lift Station $3,082.86, Sellers Lift Station $3,945.35 and VC Lift Station 

$3,513.65.   

22. To approve the quote from Solomon in the amount of $10,379.00 for transformers for stock. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Mayor  

2.        Police Chief 

3.        Fire Chief 

3.        Main Street Manager 

4.        Parks and Recreation Director-QSA 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

if you need special assistance, please contact 
Mayor Mark Piazza’s office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Emergency Special Meeting 

December 30, 2021 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in emergency special session on December 

30, 2021 at 5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 

North State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White   

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Lieutenant Sean Ramke 

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Tommy Picard, Park Director QSA 

 

Mayor Piazza stated that we are here to declare a state of emergency because of the vandalism 

of Felicity Electrical Substation.  This will allow him to do all acts necessary to replace the 

transformer as expeditiously as possible.  He will not go through all the details about the acts of 

vandalism and the efforts that were made to restore electricity as quickly as possible.  Each 

Council member was there and saw exactly what happened and what we had to do to restore the 

power.  It took longer than we were hoping for but those were things that could not be avoided.  

This is no different than a hurricane event.  We are now operating on our backup transformer.  

We need to act as soon as possible with the advice of Harvey Dubois and Stewart Head.  Stewart 

and the electrical crew did a fantastic job.  He will wait for Harvey’s evaluation of the existing 

transformer before acting.  This emergency declaration will allow him to purchase some things 

that may be necessary.  Councilman Touchet stated that the Mayor will have the ability to do 

what he needs to do and to put us in a good position.  He is not comfortable because we don’t 

have a spare transformer.  Stewart and his crew did an outstanding job.  They worked non-stop.  

Chris Gautreaux did an excellent job.  He provided updates to him.  He was on top of it and he did 

what he needed to do.  He led our guys, did what needed to be done and he was a leader to the 

crews.  He thanked Chris for what he did.  Councilman Broussard stated that this Council works 

so well together and we are being proactive 5 hours after this crisis ended.  This will authorize the 

Mayor to find the transformer in a crisis, nationwide, supply chain issue.  This will not be as easy, 

as fast or as affordable as it once was.  Mayor Piazza stated that Kathy has already reached out 

to our insurance company and it appears that we will have some coverage for this.  Councilwoman 

White asked Mayor Piazza if the City would cover the perishables and other losses of constituents.  

She had been receiving a lot of calls about that.  What is the City liable for?  Mayor Piazza stated 

that Ike is not here and he is not an attorney but he thinks that Ike would say that even in a state 

of emergency, such as this, you can’t contribute, donate or give to the public City funds under any 

situation.  Unless this would be something distributed through the National Guard or FEMA or 

something along those lines.  He does not believe that the City can hand out money to people to 

help them pay for food because of an act of vandalism or an act of God.  It has never been done 

in the past.  Councilwoman White distributed the research that she had done on the property 

adjacent to the substation.  The lot was sold in September 2021 for a very low amount.  When 

you are looking at your action plan, please think about this property because we do need a little 

3



2 
 

more room to maneuver and this property is vacant.  We should be able to acquire the property 

for a relatively low amount.  Councilman Touchet stated that we need to have the trees cut and 

get them out of there.  Mayor Piazza stated that we will have to take the trees out because we 

need to be able to go in there with a crane when the new transformer comes in.  Councilwoman 

Broussard thanked the Mayor and the City Council members for being out there and for Chris and 

all he did during this crisis.  Mayor Piazza added that we also need to thank Shirley for answering 

all the phone calls.   

 

Plaisance/T. Broussard 

Resolution R21-51 

 

A resolution declaring a state of emergency because of vandalism of Felicity Electrical Substation 

and to authorize the Mayor to do all acts necessary to replace the transformer as expeditiously 

as possible. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

               

4



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Special Meeting 

December 30, 2021 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in special session on December 30, 2021 at 

5:10 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White   

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Lieutenant Sean Ramke 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Tommy Picard, Park Director QSA 

               

Mayor Piazza stated we have two agenda items on this special meeting at the request of 

Councilman Touchet and Councilman Broussard.  One is to approve a quote from Bayou Fencing 

and the other is to approve a quote from LisCo.  Both are relative to the Comeaux Park Renovation 

that is currently taking place.  The problem we are having is the ability to get materials.  We need 

to get all this ordered now in order for it to be in and installed by February 2022.  Materials are 

very hard to get so that is why we are having this special meeting.   

 

Councilman Plaisance asked where the invoices will be paid from.  Mayor Piazza stated that the 

fencing project will be paid from the hurricane funds because some of the fences were damaged 

as a result of the hurricanes.  The other invoice will be paid from the borrowed funds.  

Councilwoman White stated the balance left in the borrowed money is $214,133.79.  The portable 

restrooms are being paid from the ARPA funds.  Councilman Plaisance asked the question because 

he is concerned if we were to have another emergency and would need those funds.  Mayor Piazza 

stated that he is still optimistic about receiving the remaining money from FEMA.  He has a 

meeting with GOHSEP on January 12, 2022 to discuss this issue.   

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

the quote from Bayou Fencing in the amount of $58,860.21 for fence repairs/replacement at 

Parker, Shelby-Chester, Vorhoff, Luquette and Delcambre fields and to pay those invoices from 

hurricane funds.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

the quote from LisCo in the amount of $215,251.00 for canopies and concrete at various ballfields 

at A. A. Comeaux Park.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

LisCo stated that he will begin work on January 10, 2022.  This will be paid from the borrowed 

funds. 

 

 

 

5



2 
 

There being no further business to discuss Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST :     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

6



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Special Meeting 

February 18, 2022 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in special session on February 18, 2022 at 

4:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., and Roslyn White   

 

Members Absent:  Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr.   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Ben Rivera, Insurance Agent 

               

Mayor Piazza stated we are here for this special City Council meeting to discuss a couple of agenda 

items.  Councilman Broussard asked that the we deviate from the agenda to add one item to the 

agenda for Comeaux Park.  Councilman Broussard stated that the sports engineer made his final 

inspection today on Sellers and Theriot Fields.  We need to give the Mayor authorization to accept 

those two fields as substantially complete with a punch list so that we can take possession of 

those fields so the high schools can begin using these two fields. 

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to deviate from 

the agenda to add the acceptance of Sellers and Theriot fields with punch list items.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Councilman Broussard stated that the sports engineer saw nothing out of the ordinary in his final 

inspection of Sellers and Theriot fields.  He has a punch list for both fields.  Mayor Piazza stated 

that once the engineer states that the high schools can play on those fields, he will give them the 

go ahead because we will not have another meeting between now and the start of their season.  

Our next meeting falls on Mardi Gras, 3/1/22, so we will not have a meeting that day.  The high 

schools want to start next week.  He has met with all three of the schools that play there now, 

Abbeville High, Harvestime and Vermilion Catholic, to sign the third-party usage field agreements.  

Those are all in place.  This will allow the Mayor to allow them to play since we have the 

agreements in place and we have the substantial completion of those two fields.  That will give 

them ability to go on the field and the contractor would not be able to come back on us and say 

the schools messed it up before the end of the contract.  Councilman Plaisance asked if the 

outfields are ready too.  Councilman Broussard stated that Don Simpson, the sports engineer, was 

not saying that.  A majority of the outfields were not touched as part of this project.  We can’t 

argue with Mother Nature and if they will be wet, then they will be wet.  That is not part of what 

GeoSurfaces did.  This would be only for the part that GeoSurfaces did. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to accept 

Sellers and Theriot Fields as substantially complete with a punch list so that the high school teams 

may begin utilizing the fields.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to accept 

option number 2 in the amount of $222,897.18 for the renewal of property, inland 

marine/equipment, commercial auto physical, airport liability and boiler machinery coverage 

effective March 1, 2022 with Thompson, Smith and Leach.  The motion carried unanimously. 

7



2 
 

 

Mr. Rivera stated that there may a buy down option to reduce the boiler and machinery coverage 

deductible from $250,000 to $50,000 for an additional premium of $900 for electrical 

apparatuses.  If that happens, he will come back with an endorsement later.  He will follow up on 

that and let the Insurance Committee know. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to accept the 

renewal from Risk Management, Inc. in the amount of $222,805.56 for the renewal of 

commercial general liability, law enforcement officer coverage, automobile liability and errors 

and omissions coverage effective March 1, 2022.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

8



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Council personnel interviews 

February 1, 2022 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for personnel interviews on February 1, 2022 

at 5:15 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White    

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Todd O’Bryan, Lieutenant 

    Rachaundra Tyler 

    Deontray Cassimere 

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here to interview two candidates for the position of Police Officer.    

 

-01 introduced by Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to enter into 

executive session to conduct interviews with both candidates.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to reconvene 

the meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated that during executive session they interviewed two candidates for Police 

Officer, Rachaundra Tyer and Deontray Cassimere.   

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor  

9



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Council personnel interviews 

February 15, 2022 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met for personnel interviews on February 15, 2022 

at 5:00 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr. and Roslyn White    

 

Members Absent:  Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr.   

 

Also Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

    Blake Miller 

    Terry Grice 

    Erin LaPoint 

    Brittany Hebert Kent 

     

Mayor Piazza stated we are here to interview four candidates for the position of Police Officer. 

He asked if there were any comments on any agenda item prior to action.  There were none   

 

-01 introduced by Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to enter into 

executive session to conduct interviews with all four candidates.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to reconvene the 

meeting from executive session.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated that during executive session they interviewed four candidates for Police 

Officer;  Blake Miller, Terry Grice, Erin LaPoint and Brittany Hebert Kent.   

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor  

10



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

January 4, 2022 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on January 4, 2022 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White    

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Stewart Head, Electrical Superintendent  

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

    Tommy Picard, Park & Recreation Director, QSA  

    Joey Boneski  

    Mike Hardy 

    April Harrison, Manager of Bourbon Street Deli 

               

Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Joey Boneski to lead the assembly in prayer.  Mayor Piazza asked Chief 

Bill Spearman to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

minutes from the Council personnel interview meeting held on December 7, 2021, the 

Committee meeting held on December 7, 2021 and the regular City Council meetings held on 

December 7, 2021 and December 21, 2021.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify the 

purchase of radios from Premier Wireless in the amount of $13,374.40 for the Abbeville Police 

Department.  The radios are under state contract.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve the 

quote from Techline in the amount of $8,934.81 for poles for stock.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-04 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve 

payment of estimate for partial payment number 1 in the amount of $54,413.41 payable to 

Patriot Construction for the LaFitte Park Walking Trail project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

11



2 
 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

change order number 1 relative to the LaFitte Park Walking Trail project.   The change order does 

not change the contract price.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve payment 

of estimate for partial payment #3 (final) payable to Glenn Lege Construction in the amount of 

$12,582.34 for the North and South Hollingsworth Drive and Cypress Street milling and overlay.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve change 

order #2 relative to the North and South Hollingsworth Drive and Cypress Street milling and 

overlay project.  The change order reduces the contract price in the amount of $75.00.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

a special event permit to hold the Vermilion Walk for Life on January 22, 2022 from 10:00 AM to 

1:00 PM and to waive the permit fee.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to authorize the 

Mayor to sign all documents to lease a backhoe for 5 years, with an option to purchase after the 

term of the lease, for the water department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

the quote from Preferred Electric, Inc. in the amount of $13,500.00 for bores for lighting at Roy 

Theriot Field and Ralph Sellers Field.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to authorize 

advertisement for bids for the 2021 LCDBG Sewer System Improvements project.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated this is a project estimated to cost $1.5 million.  The grant is $1,000,000 and 

we will utilize $500,000 from the ARPA funds.  The project will aid the west side of the City and 

will increase the sewer capacity. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

- He and Stewart had a debriefing regarding how they could have been more efficient and 

what could have been done different, regarding the emergency at Felicity Substation.  We 

will need to cut the trees to install the new transformer when it comes in.  They filled out 

the sabotage report together.  Stewart is in the process of pricing a transformer.  That 

may take five to twelve months to get a replacement.  They will be meeting with the 

insurance adjuster tomorrow.  Mayor Piazza stated that the transformer is not readily 

available so in the meantime we are getting prices from an electrical contractor to run a 

connection line to Gertrude.  That will happen pretty quickly.  We will need a price and we 

also need to know who can get here the fastest.  Stewart stated once they begin work it 

will take about 2 days to run the line.  Chris asked if we still need three quotes since an 

emergency declaration has been issued.  Mayor Piazza stated that we will have to talk to 

Harvey Dubois about that regarding a price for a turn key job to replace the transformer.  

That way it is a public works contract and we would not need to go out for bids.  

Councilman Touchet stated that we need to talk about how we will protect our 

infrastructure in the future.  We will need a master plan for that.  Mayor Piazza stated 

that he has already reached out to Mike Marcotte.  He has a few suggestions and Harvey 

12



3 
 

works with a lot of big providers and we are researching all avenues.  He thanked Stewart 

and his crew for their hard work and efforts on this. 

- Since 12/1/2021, the water department has repaired 33 water leaks in the City.  They have 

two pending.  They are keeping a log.  Those guys get out there and they hustle to get 

them done.   

- He is working with Councilwoman White on Graceland.  We have a problem with about 

160 feet of line there.  We are working in conjunction with the Police Jury to replace the 

line and getting them to overlay that intersection.  It is a 2-inch galvanized line.  It is not 

on the map and we are not sure if it feeds anyone.  Mr. Gene will assist us to put a tracer 

on it to see if it does feed anybody.  If it doesn’t then we can cap it on both ends and 

eliminate that problem.  There have been about 8 repairs in that one section.  It is time we 

do something.  Councilwoman White stated that we will dig up the line and either abandon 

it if we can and if not, we will cut it out and put a good piece of pipe so we don’t have to 

break the road again.  Juror Wayne Touchet and Juror Paul Bourgeois both will assist in 

the overlay of the street once the repair is complete.  We need to make sure whatever is 

going on, sub-surface, is taken care of first.   

- Bihm Construction put in the by-pass at the wastewater treatment plant.  They are there 

now to complete the cleaning of the main lift station.  There are a lot of debris like bricks, 

gravel, 2X4’s and other stuff.  That money will be well spent.  We are paying for this from 

the ARPA funds. 

- The last couple of weeks the sewer crew have been working on locating a strong sewer 

smell on Lorraine and Odea.  They found grease plugs in both areas and remove those to 

alleviate the smell.   

- Somebody used to come get our construction waste and other debris at the City Barn.  

They no longer need it so they haven’t picked that up in years.  We are at a point now that 

we can’t hardly turn trucks around there.  He has eliminated a lot of trash from going in 

there since he started.  We are now hauling tires to the solid waste plant.  During the day, 

people just drive by and throw trash.  If the gates are locked, they throw it at the door.  It 

is becoming a big problem and we need that placed cleaned up.  He has plans to keep it 

clean.  He has exhausted all of the avenues of people coming to get it for free.   He has 

received quotes and they range from $65,000 to $35,000.  The Police Jury will not accept 

it.  It is hard to get rid of concrete and blacktop.  The solid waste plant will not take it.  We 

need to make the yard more presentable and he will need help from the City Council.  

Mayor Piazza stated that it has been almost 10 years since we had a company who would 

pick up the debris.  The construction debris comes from repairs, sidewalks and utility 

repairs.  We can pay for some of the clean up from sales tax.  He will put it on the agenda 

for the next meeting.   

 

Tommy Picard, Public Works Director, QSA 

- Chris sent a crew to clean up Sellers Field.  We will need more concrete there. 

- Dominic, with LISCO, with start work on January 13, 2022. 

- Kaplan is interested in the old bleachers and perhaps Delcambre too.  Erath and Abbeville 

High do not want them. 

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- Thanked Chris for all he does.  He is doing a great job. 

- Recognized April Harrison.  She is the manager of Bourbon Street Deli and she has recently 

been named as the top manager out of 7 Bourbon Street Deli’s.  

 

 

 

13



4 
 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- Discussed the upcoming MLK Activities.  They will be having the Stump Service, Monday, 

1/17/22 beginning at 9:30 AM to 10:00 AM at the corner of Green and I. J. Joiner.  They 

will have a motorcade on Monday,1/17/22, beginning at 10:30 AM until 11:00 AM.  You 

can line up at Pleasant Green Baptist Church for the motorcade.  The motorcade will 

conclude at McKinley Scott Park at 11:00 AM to 12:00 PM.  The Black History display will 

be from 1/11/22-2/25/22 at the Vermilion Cultural and Alliance Center.  They will have a 

one-night revival on Thursday, 1/13/22 at 7:00 PM at 210 S. St. Valerie.  The celebration 

breakfast will be Saturday, 1/15/22 at 8:30 AM.  This will take place at the Ark of the 

Covenant Church at 210 S. St. Valerie.  Sunday they will have a church service at Lighthouse 

Missionary Baptist Church on the corner of Martin Luther King and Cuba Street.  

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- Recognized Shirley Bertrand, Stewart and the rest of the electrical crew and Chris and his 

crews.  It is one of our brightest days when we have such a response to such a crisis. 

- The turf will be in on 1/10/22.  They will install that and then the fields will take color and 

get closer to completion.   

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- After doing a thirty-hour shift and getting the City back on power, the electrical crew was 

out again Saturday and Sunday morning restoring power that outage occurred due to 

some broken poles.  They worked through their holiday and through their vacations.  Some 

people were very upset and short-tempered, as they should be for being without power, 

but these guys and ladies don’t go to sleep and stay up in order to get power restored.  It 

is very important to recognize that. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

January 18, 2022 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on January 18, 2022 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White    

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Stewart Head, Electrical Superintendent  

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

    T. J. Savoy, Engineer 

    Joey Boneski  

    Mike Hardy 

             

     

Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Joey Boneski to lead the assembly in prayer.  Mayor Piazza asked Mr. 

Mike Hardy to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify bills paid 

in the month of December 2021.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to deviate from 

the agenda to consider a proposal from Green Care Management for Sellers Field.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve the 

quote from HIDCO in the amount of $35,000.00 for trash, debris, dirt and cement removal at the 

City yard.  The invoice is to be paid as follows:  ½ from the City Sales Tax fund and ½ from the 

Utility system fund.  The motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(Plaisance, T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Touchet) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSENT: 0 

 ABSTAIN: 1(White) 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

15



2 
 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to ratify the 

repair of the motor to water well #6 in the amount of $7,617.50.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to ratify the 

repair of Unit 655 in the amount of $6,659.70 for the Abbeville Police Department.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

payment of pay application number 2 in the amount of $171,000.00 payable to GeoSurfaces, Inc. 

for the Comeaux Park Renovation Project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve payment 

of estimate for partial payment number 6 (final) in the amount of $81,089.31 payable to Elliott 

Construction, LLC for the Rehabilitation of the Runway and Partial Taxiway Project.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to reappoint 

Ms. Denise Ardeneaux to the Municipal Employees Civil Service Board, retroactively to May 31, 

2021 since the appointment expired on that date.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

payment of estimate for partial payment number 2 payable to Patriot Construction in the amount 

of $54,887.81.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-10 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

payment of estimate for partial payment number 2 in the amount of $18,398.90 payable to Glenn 

Lege Construction for the cleaning of the concrete lined coulee project using ARPA funds.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

the quote from Green Care Ground Management in the amount of $6,500.00 for Sellers Field at 

Comeaux Park.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

- We will have the annual survey Thursday at the Water Treatment Plant.  They will check 

our paperwork. 

- We have a foundation issue at the lift station near Sucre Circle.  We have a lot of trash 

coming into it.  He has consulted with Mr. Gene.  We also have a lot of trash coming into 

the North Airport lift station too.  We believe it is from the nursing home so Mr. Gene will 

also be evaluating that. 

- He has also consulted with Mr. Gene regarding some water drainage issues at Comeaux 

Park.  With all the concrete being poured, we need to see where all the water will go.  

There is an issue on the back side of the property.  That is where all the water goes.  We 

will be proactive with that and see if we can work on those issues. 

- They will start boring in the park to place the underground utilities on Thursday. 

- Thank you for approving the quote to clean up the City Yard.  Once it is clean, we will go 

to the next steps.  We will fix the fence and seal the fence on the outside.  City forces will 

do that.  After that we will put containers to put the different debris in. 

- Councilman Touchet asked Chris is LISCO has started their work at Comeaux Park yet.   

Chris stated that they have not started.   

16



3 
 

- Chris stated that the goals are almost hung at McKinley Scott Park.  He poured some extra 

concrete there too.  Councilwoman Broussard thanked Chris for the work being done in 

her district.  Chris stated that he will try to engage with Ronald Darby to help them with 

trash.  Councilwoman Broussard stated that they also have a problem with illegal 

dumping.  Chris agreed and stated that we also have problems with landlords dumping 

stuff on the road too.  Councilman Broussard thanked Chris for cutting trees on North Main 

Street and at Comeaux Park.  Keep up the good work.  Councilwoman White asked Chris, 

when he reaches out to Ronald Darby, maybe to get him to clarify something that we have 

all been going back and forth with.  The Police Jury has put in place an ordinance that 

stated that landlords were not supposed to put the trash at the road without an 

appointment with the Police Jury for them to come and pick it up.  She has called solid 

waste to see if the landlord had an appointment and solid waste has told her that they 

don’t do appointments.  The Police Jurors say they do.  Please see if you can get this 

straight.  Chris stated that he did attend his first public works committee meeting with the 

Police Jury.  He sat and was quiet but he will not stay quiet too long.  He will bring that up. 

- He is getting proposals together to clean basin #4 at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- Yesterday morning the entire west side of town was covered with thick smoke due the 

cane burning.  There is not much we can do about that.  It was very bad. 

- The renovation at Comeaux Park is progressing well.  The pitching mounds have been 

ordered and we saved $4,500.00 from the original projection.  The bids for the portable 

bathroom facilities will be opened on Thursday at 2:00 PM through LAMATS.  LISCO will 

begin their project soon.  We do have some drainage issues that are being worked on. 

- It was a wonderful Martin Luther King Day celebration the entire weekend.  It started off 

with a mass last Thursday evening.  He attended the breakfast Saturday morning.  It was 

well attended but they were able to space everybody out and issued masks to everyone as 

you walked in the door of the breakfast hall.  That was very good and very conscience of 

them to protect everybody.  The Chief and his officers did an excellent job with the 

motorcade yesterday.  It went all over town.  The finale at McKinley Scott Park pavilion 

went very well.  Councilwoman Broussard received a standing ovation when he announced 

that she was instrumental in securing the funds for the pavilion.  Everybody loved the work 

done on the pavilion.  So sorry she could not be there to be with us.   

 

Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

- Discussed his report of calls responded to.  There were 335 calls in two weeks. 

- Mayor Piazza told Chief Spearman that the cameras are in at the Housing Authority and 

they are working with an electrician and Stewart to get those installed. 

 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

- Issued the 911 call sheet for the entire parish for 2021. He discussed the report. 

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- He attended all the Martin Luther King Day celebrations.  The church service was 

outstanding.  It lasted three hours but was very good. 

- Congratulated Mayor Piazza for being the Grand Marshal of the MLK Day motorcade.  He 

was honored and he is very proud of the Mayor and for all he has done. 

- When you get a chance, during hunting season, take a ride by the airport.  He sent a 

picture to Councilman Touchet of the four beautiful jets that were there.  They are all 

enjoying the new terminal.  Mayor Piazza stated that we need to send the picture to 

Danielle, our program manager in Baton Rouge. 

17



4 
 

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- Thanked everyone that attended the MLK Day activities.  She regretted that she could not 

attend. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- The organizers and the participants of the MLK Day activities did an outstanding job.  The 

City shined for that celebration this year. 

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- Asked if we had received the at home COVID tests.  Kathy stated that we had received 

three boxes and one and one-half boxes had already been distributed to the public.  

Councilwoman White asked what the parameters are.  Mayor Piazza stated we are 

distributing 2 kits per household.  We were supposed to receive 300 and we have already 

given out a box and one-half.  They can be picked up inside the lobby or at the drive thru.  

Councilwoman White asked Allie to post the two government sites that are issuing free at 

home COVID tests.  One is from U.S. Government and the other is special.usps.com. 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

18



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

February 1, 2022 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on February 1, 2022 at 5:30 

P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State Street, 

Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr., Francis Touchet, Jr., Mayor Pro-Tem and Roslyn 

White    

 

Members Absent:  None   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Todd O’Bryan 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Stewart Head, Electrical Superintendent  

    Lee Schexnaider, Wastewater Treatment Plant Superintendent 

    Charlene Beckett, Main Street Manager 

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Tommy Picard, Parks Director QSA 

    Stacey Neal, Director Community Competitiveness 

    Nikki Vidos, member LDRC Committee 

    Joey Boneski  

    Mike Hardy 

             

     

Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Joey Boneski to lead the assembly in prayer.  Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Ike 

Funderburk to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to appoint Deontray 

Cassimere to the position of Police Officer with the Abbeville Police Department, pending 

successful completion of all post-hire assessments.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to table the 

appointment of Rochaundra Tyler to the position of Police Officer so that additional references 

can be checked.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Ms. Stacey Neal, the Director of Community Competitiveness with LED was at the meeting tonight 

to discuss the strategic plan for economic development for the City of Abbeville as part of the 

Louisiana Development Ready Communities program.  Ms. Neal stated that 48 communities have 

gone through this process.  Abbeville it the 49th.  LDRC started in 2009.  It is to come up with a 

strategic plan for community development.  The things that we focus on in this are the things that 

industry is looking at when they are looking at your community.  It makes the community take a 

hard look at what you have and what you need.  We want to set realistic goals on those things 

we can realistically accomplish.  We do not want to set expectations that are not really there.  A 

19



2 
 

lot of time, when we come into communities, what we find is that we have to start at the base 

level.  We have to identify funding before we can move into the next level of a plan.  Anne Falgout 

contacted her last spring or early summer and asked her to do a zoom with the Mayor as an 

introduction to LDRC.  Abbeville applied for the program.  We started this in July of last year.  We 

met with the committee.  The Council approved a resolution to move forward with this process 

last June.  We came in July and had a kickoff meeting.  At that point in time, there was an 

assessment done of the community.  The committee researched the quality-of-life things that 

industry would be interested in to help them be successful.  We did a community survey and over 

200 surveys came back.  That is an astronomically number for a community this size.  The 

committee did a great job with that.  There were a lot of the same things said over and over again.  

That is good because it shows that everybody has that same focus of what needs to be done.  

Between the community assessment and the survey, we did a SWOT analysis and then we came 

up with some draft goals.  LED’s role in this is facilitation and they match up the City with 

resources.  The committee and this community did these things.  LED just facilitated and kept it 

on the rails.  From there we did a public meeting of what came out of those goals.  Drainage got 

added at that meeting and other things.  We were here for a whole day and had a very good 

turnout.  We finally did our second goal meeting in December to try to get everything cleaned up.  

Here we are today.  The plan will be announced by LED On February 16, 2022.  The Council has 

been given a copy of the plan.  Benefits that you get by being an LDRC are that everyone knows 

where you are heading and this will help your community.  Our private managers match up 

projects to communities that are on that map.  They know that they will come in here and have a 

leadership that will work with them.  They know that you will have all the things needed for a 

project to be successful here.  We also have tuition assistance and will prepare testimonial videos 

of the good things happening in Abbeville.   It takes locals to make this successful.  Without our 

local economic development folks, we don’t know what is going on here every day.  If you have 

some good stuff going on, LED wants to know.  We need to know what is going on so we can sell 

you.  On the 16th you will be recognized as a certified City.  You will be put on all of LED’s mapping 

stuff and we will start working for you.  Then this community will have to implement this plan.  

Mayor Piazza stated there will be a luncheon at the old Riverfront and we will invite the chamber 

of commerce and some of the business community leaders.  It is open to the community and we 

will ask for a head count.  Ms. Neal stated that Secretary Pierson will go over the entire plan at 

the luncheon.  The plan will be available for the public at that time.  This is a living, breathing 

document and things can be changed as needed.  These are not set in stone.  As we check things 

off then we can add new things to it.  They will help you do that.  Councilwoman White stated 

that the committee is a living committee and continues to work on the checklist.  We currently 

have one person working on economic development, Anne Falgout, but now we have expanded 

that times 90 because we have the State team working for us.  This is at no cost to the City of 

Abbeville.  It was done completely with volunteer labor and under the umbrella of LED.  We will 

post the plan on the website after February 16th.   Mayor Piazza stated that he has never been a 

big fan of these types of plans because there was usually no funding available to implement the 

plan.  Now with all the federal grants coming from the infrastructure bill there may be money 

available to do this.  There are finances out there that we need to go after.  

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

-03 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize the 

Mayor to execute the Audit Engagement letter with Darnall, Sikes and Frederick.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

20



3 
 

-04 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to authorize the 

Mayor to execute the AUP agreement with Darnall, Sikes and Frederick.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

B. Broussard/White 

Resolution R22-01 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the agreement with DOTD relative to the 

Downtown Abbeville Streetscaping Phase II Project. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to accept the quote 

from Bayou Fencing for the repair of the fence along the coulee across the street from LaFitte 

Park by Dollar General.  The fence was damaged by a tree that fell as a result of a hurricane.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

B. Broussard/Plaisance 

Resolution R22-02 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the Low-Income Household Water Assistance 

vendor agreement with the Louisiana Housing Corporation. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve a 

Class B beer and liquor permit for Murphy Oil USA located at 3007 Veterans Memorial Drive.  The 

motion was put to a vote and the vote thereupon was as follows: 

 YEAS:  4(T. Broussard, B. Broussard, Touchet, White) 

 NAYS:  0 

 ABSTAIN: 1(Plaisance) 

 ABSENT: 0 

Therefore, the motion carried. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve a variance 

to the Airport Hazard Zoning Ordinance to Dunn Exploration Company, LLC for the installation of 

a temporary drilling rig up to 130 feet in height with the understanding that all conditions 

designated in the FAA determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation for Temporary Structure are 

met.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to approve 

the quote from Allen Enterprises, Inc in the amount of $8,765.69 for the purchase of a new wind 

cone for the Airport.  The project will be paid from the CARES Act.  The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to authorize the 

purchase of one 5HP Zoeller submersible pump to be purchased from Griner Drilling at a cost of 

$8,275.00 and the installation of the pump to be performed by MMR at a cost of $620.00 for the 

North Abbeville Lift Station.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

21



4 
 

-10 introduced by Ms. Roslyn White and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve the 

quote from Luke Deshotel Construction to pump out and clean sewer plant basin #4 at a cost of 

$4,500.00 plus $.60 per gallon that will be pumped out.  The expense will be paid from ARPA 

funds.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Lee Schexnaider stated that one foot of debris equals about 50,000 gallons.  We believe there 

is about 2 to 3 feet of sediment in there.  It is not consistent across the aeration basin.  Mayor 

Piazza stated that this basin has never been cleaned.  It could be filled halfway so we are only 

taking ½ of the capacity.  We really won’t know the total cost until it has been completed. Basin 

number 1, 2 and 3 were cleaned several years ago. 

 

-11 introduced by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to surplus unit 

618, a silver Ford pickup truck, unit 560, a Snapper lawn tractor, unit 279, a 1988 Ford 800 pole 

truck, unit 274, a Simplicity tractor, unit 361, a diesel Gradall hydraulic excavator, unit 501, a 

2008 Chevrolet Impala from the City Marshal’s office and various other equipment.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Chief Jude Mire discussed Operation Save a Life smoke detector distribution.  The department 

received 120 smoke detectors and it is mandatory that they install 2 in the households that receive 

them.  The firemen will install the detectors for the residents.  The residents can begin calling the 

fire department on 2/14/22 to give their names, phone numbers and addresses and the fire 

department will set up a time to install it for them.  The residents have to be in our response area.  

There are no income restrictions. 

 

-12 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

change order number 2 relative to the LaFitte Park Walking Trail Project.  The change order 

reduces the contract amount by $3,091.69.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-13 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to approve 

payment of partial payment number 3 in the amount of $20,768.21 payable to Patriot 

Construction for the LaFitte Park Walking Trail Project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Plaisance/T. Broussard 

Resolution R22-03 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an act of acceptance from Patriot Construction 

relative to the LaFitte Park Walking Trail. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Allie asked when is the park open.  Mayor Piazza stated the park is open every day for the walking 

trail but only open on Friday, Saturday and Sunday for fishing.  Mr. Gene Sellers stated the public 

can now start using the trail. 

 

Councilman Touchet began a discussion of requiring permits for street legal golf carts on City 

roads.  They would need insurance, horn, lights, seatbelts and windshields.  He would like Ike to 

research that to see if that is something we could permit through out permitting department.  Ike 

stated that if the State is licensing them already, we cannot prevent them.  Councilwoman White 

stated there is a big difference between a street legal golf cart and a regular golf cart.  She doesn’t 

want the public to think they are the same.  Chief Spearman stated that Youngsville allows them 

but only in certain neighborhoods so they can permit them.  They are only allowed there on City 

22



5 
 

streets and not State highways.  Ike stated that he would do more research and send out a memo 

or email  of his findings to the Mayor and each Council member. 

 

-14 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve 

the quote from American Integration Contractors in the amount of $42,842.48 for the Comeaux 

Park Security Camera upgrade.  The quote is on state contract.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

T. Broussard/Plaisance 

Resolution R22-03A 

 

A resolution authorizing the Mayor to negotiate a purchase price with the owners of 601 S. East 

Street.  Said price is not to exceed the appraised value of the property.  If successful, the City 

Attorney is authorized to conduct such title work as deemed necessary and further to authorize 

the Mayor to execute a cash deed transferring ownership of said property to the City.   

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-15 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve payment 

of partial payment number 3 (final) in the amount of $16,653.00 payable to Glenn Lege 

Construction, LLC for the cleaning of the concrete lined coulee project.  The drainage board will 

reimburse the City for this expense.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-16 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the quote 

from Versalift in the amount of $5,021.60 for the repair of the bucket truck and the quote in the 

amount of $6,884.25 for the repair of the pole truck.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-17 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. to approve the 

quote in the amount of $9,760.00 from Echo Powerline for the installation of a 3-phase 4/0 ACSR 

tie for three spans.  This will tie in Gertrude Electrical Substation to Felicity Electrical Substation.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Charlene Beckett, Main Street Manager 

- The Chamber Leadership toured the Blacksmith Shop on January 20, 2022. 

- We are preparing for the upcoming Sounds on the Square.  The 3/17/22 date is still up in 

the air because we will have our tour group that usually comes.  We will serve them 

breakfast.  3/24/22 is Beau Young.  The City partnered with Madeline Dehart, the music 

coordinator for the parish, and on 3/31/22 Blake Miller and the Old Fashion Aces will 

perform with the student fiddlers.  On 4/7/22 there is a teacher and she has a band called 

“Poisson Rouge” and there are high school students from the parish that will perform.  The 

name of their band is Bayou Tigre and the Steppers.  They will be playing together.  The 

band has not yet been determined for 4/21/22. 

- Yesterday was the deadline to report for the 2021 Community Challenge AARP grant.  The 

fit trail at LaFitte Park is complete.  Easiest grant we have ever had. 

- She looked over the LDRC plan and she loves that they have a whole section on litter.  It is 

great. 

- KLB is offering some grants.  She will be applying for cleaning supply grants and for a trash 

can grant.  If you are awarded the trash can grant you receive 5 of them.  We have already 

received 15 trash cans from this type of grant in the past.  

- The Cleanest City Contest is 4/4/22-4/8/22. 

- Love the Boot initiative to get the word out throughout the entire State is April18th and 

April 24th.  She will email the Council the details of the initiative.   

23



6 
 

- The Garden Club planted the pansies in Harmony Park and the materials have been 

purchased to build the garden beds. 

 

Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

- We had our annual audit at the Water Plant.  He has not yet seen the final results but 

Roger said we did really well.  One thing is that we will have to change our water sample 

taps. 

- The water crew had 30 water leaks in the month of January.  25 have been fixed and the 

other 5 are pending Louisiana One Calls before they can be fixed. 

- The electrical crew is busy doing service calls and working at Comeaux Park. 

- We finished the basketball court at McKinley Scott Park.  Paul Tomino painted the court 

and got the goals up.  The kids love it.   

- The trash still has not yet been cleaned up at the City yard.  He is still waiting for Larry with 

HIDCO.  He said he is coming and the weather is holding him back right now. 

- The street crew is busy working in Comeaux Park and in several districts and doing what 

they can around the weather.   

- A salesman stopped by the office and discussed an interesting machine for road cut 

patches.  They make a trailer that you put cold mix in and it heats the cold mix so you can 

work with it.  It also has a sprayer on it where you can spray down the whole once you 

clean it.  It also has a packer on the trailer that allows you to pack it down good.  Then you 

spray it to seal the patch.  That doesn’t allow water to get in it.  He and the Mayor have 

been discussing this equipment.  A 4-ton machine is about $60,000.00 and he is awaiting 

a price on a 2-ton machine.  Mayor Piazza stated that the last time we hired a contract 

crew it was $36,000.00.  Before that it was $32,000.00 and before that it was $50,000.00.  

It is getting more and more expensive.  He and Chris have been discussing this for quite a 

while.  Sometimes we have to wait months to get a road patch fixed.  We keep having to 

put limestone over and over.  Councilman Touchet asked if ARPA funds could be used.  

Mayor Piazza answered that maybe we could.  Chris stated that he is doing concrete when 

he can because concrete is quicker.  Mayor Piazza stated that he prefers us to use concrete 

on a concrete road and use asphalt on an asphalt road.  Chris has been working with the 

Police Jury for the very large road cuts or those that are severely deteriorated. 

- Chris stated that we have the large patch on Graceland that we will work with the Police 

Jury.  Larry will order the water pipe for the side of the shoulder.  Councilwoman White 

stated that she spoke to Gary today and he said to go ahead with our crew and do the 

work and as soon as it warms up, he will put us on the front of the list to overlay that 

portion.  Chris stated they still not have been able to see who the water line feeds.  Mayor 

Piazza stated that Larry said he would try to do it on the shoulder so that he would not 

have to cut the road anymore.  There are also two bad road cuts on Maude that he is 

working on.  They go all the way across the road. 

- Mayor Piazza asked Chris about the rotor repair.  Mr. Gene Sellers stated the contractor 

had another setback so it has been pushed back to April.   

 

Tommy Picard, Park Director QSA 

- You need to go see Sellers Field.  When it is finished, it will be the nicest high school field 

in the state of Louisiana.  Councilwoman White asked Tommy to share the video with Allie 

so she can post it on the City page.  Tommy stated that they will go to Theriot Field next. 

- The covers are on Parker and only have Vorhoff left.  Councilman Touchet stated that he 

is concerned about Abbeville High School and Vermilion Catholic.  Baseball season is 

coming up so he asked Chris and the Mayor to work with Tommy.  He asked Tommy to go 

through Chris to schedule the work.  Chris will get the answers from the Mayor.  Those 

schools are relying on us to get this done.  We need to get a punch list on each of these 

24



7 
 

fields and knock that out.  Take advantage of the weather we have.  Tommy stated that 

we are waiting for the mounds.  They should be in pretty soon.  We should not rush it.  We 

rushed it with this sod thing at Sellers Field and that was a mistake.   

- They have a tournament on March 18th.  It is an adult softball tournament.  There will be 

120 teams.  They come play all night long.  They will play on Sellers and Theriot.  They will 

finish Sunday night. 

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- The Louisiana Cattle Festival is coming back October the 7th, 8th, and 9th.  The pageant will 

be held March 5th.   

- On March 26th and 27th, The Zerbini Family Circus will be at the Red Barn.  They will have 

2 performances each day. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- We have a need for jail space.  The police department is picking up (panhandlers) and 

booking them and there is no place to put them so they are going back on our street and 

are repeating the crime.  It is a revolving door and it is because they cannot place them in 

a jail cell.  We are responsible for finding jail space when there is none.  The City of 

Abbeville had a jail and for whatever reason we don’t have it now.  He has been getting 

complaints about the panhandlers who make a living on our corners.  The police 

department pick them up and book them 6,7,8 times and then let them go and they are 

right back in the same place.  We better start thinking outside of the box about how we 

will take these people off of our streets.  

 

Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

- Asked Ike if we are prosecuting these panhandlers.  Ike answer yes and we have been 

doing it the entire time that he has been a prosecutor for the City.  We have hot spots.  We 

used to have problems at Robies.  Now we have problems on Charity Street and the By-

Pass.  Two weeks ago, in his packet of cases, he had the same guy on three different 

panhandling type charges.  We can’t put them in Iberia Parish Jail where we have beds 

that we pay for.  Mayor Piazza stated we can’t put them there because those offenses are 

misdemeanor offenses.  They will not take them in any of the jails for a misdemeanor.  

Councilman Touchet asked if the officers are seeing about this problem.  Chief Spearman 

answered yes.  If they are in the road or if they are violating an ordinance, his officers are 

taking care of it.  Ike stated that generally we get the complaint from the business.  Mayor 

Piazza stated if the property owner allows them to be there, we cannot do anything.  Ike 

stated we can deal with those that are on the right-of-way.  If the property owner calls to 

report a panhandler on their property, then the police respond to that.  Chief Spearman 

stated they can prosecute those on the right-of-way.  They are issued a citation.  

Councilman Broussard stated that if there is an arrest then the police cannot put them in 

jail because of the jail space issue.  Councilman Touchet stated that we need to continue 

to do what we have to do so that these people understand that they can’t do that here.  

Mayor Piazza stated that Councilman Broussard is incorrect.  Chief Spearman cannot put 

a person in jail for a misdemeanor.  All he can do is issue him a citation.  The judge at City 

Court is the only one that can put a person in jail for a misdemeanor.  Ike stated the judge 

can order someone to go to jail if they fail to pay their bond.  Mayor Piazza stated however 

the parish jail does not have to take them because it is for a misdemeanor.  Ike stated that 

we do not have our own jail facility.  When we did, we could use that as our leverage in 

order to get people to pay their bond.  Grandma would come in and pay Junior’s fine so 

Junior wouldn’t have to go to the Abbeville City Jail.   

25



8 
 

- He thanked the constituents of District B for him having no opposition again.  He will be 

here at this table for another four years.  In the twenty years he has been on this Council, 

something happened during qualifying time that he is very disappointed in.  He will take 

an active role with whoever will be on this Council because he really believes that there 

are certain people that did certain things that tried to get people to run against him that 

were not even in his district.  You have to be kidding me.  You were disrespectful to the 

citizens of District B and himself.  We have people that come to this Council that don’t 

even belong in our parish that come over here and talk about this, that or whatever that 

get on the phone and say things like we still have time to get somebody against him.  These 

people need to grow up.  Mayor Piazza has done an excellent job and you will be ending 

your term.  We will have a new Council and a new Mayor and we will have a new Chief.  

Elections have consequences.  If the citizens of Abbeville don’t understand that, then we 

will have the same old, same old take place.  That is what it comes down to.  We have to 

make sure that we put people in office that will stick to their word and do the things that 

they have to do.  He pledges to this Council, to the future Council and to the community 

that we will work on safety.  He doesn’t feel safe.  His kids don’t feel safe in this community.  

We need to work on economic development.  We have 50+ buildings that are not occupied.  

We need to work on cleaning our City.  Those three things will make all the difference of 

what we will do as far as moving this City forward.  He is not from here.  He has been here; 

he is not leaving and his family is here.  Elections have consequences.  People need to go 

and do the things they have to do or else it will be the same old, same old.  Mayor Piazza 

congratulated Councilman Touchet for him running unopposed.  He wanted to follow up 

on something that he said.  Many economic development people will tell you that 

cleanliness of your City is the number one thing you need to concentrate on to attract 

people to your City.  If you can’t pick up your own litter then you will never attract a major 

company into your City to open up business and to hire people.  We suffered a huge loss, 

because of some of the actions at the Police Jury, that made Sheriff Couvilion have to 

discontinue his litter abatement program.  That was a huge loss to this parish.  That was 

the main topic at the Keep Abbeville Beautiful meeting held last week.  We need to keep 

the entrances to this City clean and losing that litter abatement program with the Sheriff, 

that was not his fault but because of actions of the Police Jury, has really hurt us with the 

ability to pick up litter in this parish.  

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- Congratulated Councilman Touchet on him running unopposed for the District B seat. 

- On the last cleanup day, she picked up herself with Nikki, walking from Highway 14 to St. 

Francis Woods subdivision, 7 bags of trash.  It is a problem and people will see it and 

absolutely no company will come and invest in Abbeville if we have piles of trash, litter 

and roadside debris littering our roads.  It is problem that we need to work on and it is a 

problem that we need to work with the Police Jury to try to solve.  They are in charge of 

waste pickup and waste management.  It is something we have to focus on.   

- Thanks to KAB for allowing us the volunteer them to help out with the economic 

development plan.   

- November 5th and 6th will be the Omelette Festival this year.   

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

 

26



9 
 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

27



1 
 

City of Abbeville 

Regular Meeting 

February 15, 2022 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Abbeville met in regular session on February 15, 2022 at 

5:30 P.M., at the regular meeting place, the Council Meeting Room, located at 101 North State 

Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, with the Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor, presiding. 

 

Members Present: Council Members, Francis Plaisance, Terry Broussard, Brady 

Broussard, Jr. and Roslyn White    

 

Members Absent:  Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr.   

 

Also, Present:   Ike Funderburk, City Attorney 

    Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

    Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

    Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet 

    Chris Gautreaux, Public Works Director 

    Sarah Alpough, Director of Revenue and Permits 

    Stewart Head, Electrical Superintendent  

    Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

    Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

    Gene Sellers, Engineer 

    Gerald Gaspard, Chamber of Commerce & American Legion 

    Richard Dubois 

    Joey Boneski  

    Mike Hardy 

             

         

Mayor Piazza asked Mr. Richard Dubois to lead the assembly in prayer.  Mayor Piazza asked Mr. 

Gerald Gaspard to lead the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

-01 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to appoint 

Blake Miller, Terry Grice, Erin LaPoint and Brittany Hebert Kent to the position of Police Officer 

with the Abbeville Police Department, pending successful completion of all post-hire 

assessments.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-02 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to ratify bills paid 

in the month of January 2022.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza asked if there were any comments from the public on any agenda item prior to 

action.  There were none. 

 

-03 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. to enter into a 

public hearing to discuss ,with the property owner, the demolition of a dilapidated camper and 

abatement of all trash/rubbish off the property located at 511 S. Young Street.  The motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

28



2 
 

Public Hearing 

 

The owner of the property stated that she needed more time to have the camper demolished.  Her 

husband had a stroke.  Councilwoman Broussard stated that she realizes he is not well.  She has 

been receiving complaints from the neighbors.  The property owner requested 30 days. 

 

-04 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to reconvene the 

regular meeting from the public hearing.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-05 introduced by Ms. Terry Broussard and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to grant the 

property owner of 511 S. Young Street 30 days to get the camper demolished or removed off the 

property.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Piazza stated that he had received a letter from Representative Clay Higgins about grant 

opportunities.  He distributed the letter to the Council.  He has also received other documentation 

from LMA which he distributed too.  He also received some correspondence from Anne Falgout 

about this topic too.  He wanted to make the Council is aware that there are a lot of grants and 

funding opportunities out there.  The letter he received from Representative Higgins has 25 

different competitive infrastructure funding opportunities for local governments in the form of 

grants.  There may be more out there because the terms and conditions of the infrastructure bill 

is just being rolled out now.  What types of grants, how to apply for them, and how much money 

is allotted in each grant are all different.  There are some great opportunities out there.  We have 

talked about transportation grants before and there are things for buses and bus facilities which 

could include bus stops.  There are infrastructure grants for roads, streets and bridges.  There is a 

very big variety of grants.  There are things that would include crosswalks and other things.  They 

also have things about reconnecting communities for parks and other infrastructure to address 

legacy impacts.  Another one is the Brownfield remediation which would include asbestos 

remediation.  That would affect our blighted properties.  Asbestos remediation is a big expense 

when it comes to blighted properties.  There are some in there for flood mitigation.  We can always 

use grant money for drainage issues.  In the past we have used Richard Minvielle for the majority 

of our grants.  He is talking about retirement.  He still does want to do some grant work but he 

no longer wants to do federal grant work.  Federal grant work is very competitive and there is a 

lot of paperwork involved.  It is very confusing and requires matching dollars.  We may need to 

either look for another grant writer or look to Mr. Gene’s office or Mr. Primeaux’s office in the 

future.  We have used your firms for mostly water, sewer, drainage and road projects.  These 

grants go beyond that.  If there is some interest from either one of you, we would like to know 

that.  If the Council wants to seek a grant writer, that is something that you need to discuss.  There 

is so much money out there and it will take a lot of tedious work to apply for these grants and 

keep up with them.  Councilwoman White stated that she spoke with Mr. Gene and called Mr. 

Primeaux and also spoke with Todd.  Richard gave her a list of other people who do the CDBG 

programs and gave us some recommendations on that if we should choose to go that route.  Todd 

Vincent assured her that he has two grant writers that will be keeping up with all of these federal 

grants that are available and he will make those people available to us for any grants we want to 

go after.  It is an option to go through Sellers & Associates for the federal grant money.  He also 

said he would be hiring some additional administrative assistants to make sure they can handle 

the paperwork.  That is one option.  You have to first start with the projects before you can write 

the grant.  We need to figure out which projects we want to go after then match the money pots 

with them.  Mayor Piazza stated that normally it starts with an idea then you develop a plan or 

there is some type of grant that you want to pursue then you have the grant writer reach out, 

look online or call that department and see exactly if what you want will fit into that grant 

opportunity.  It takes some leg work.  He advises the Council, if they choose to reach out to a grant 

29



3 
 

writer, that they have them do that research.  LMA has a grant writer that can advise the Council 

on some potential grants.  Most of that would be through the State.  The State has some matching 

grants for water and wastewater infrastructure so there will be an opportunity there.  Some of 

these grants have deadlines that are not that far off.  It needs some attention if the Council wants 

to pursue these grants that the federal government is dishing out so you will need to act now.  

You need to decide who you want to use as a grant writer and reach out to that individual or that 

company.  He advised the Police Chief and the Fire Chief to do the same thing.  These grants are 

very competitive.  There is a lot of grant money available out there.  Recently, only 28 of the 

applicants received funding out of 300 for the Water Sector Program grant. 

 

Plaisance/T. Broussard 

Resolution R22-04 

 

A resolution approving the Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire for the 2021 fiscal year audit. 

 

The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-06 introduced by Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Francis Plaisance to approve 

payment of pay application number 3 in the amount of $365,750.00 payable to GeoSurfaces, Inc. 

for the Comeaux Park Renovation Project.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-07 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Terry Broussard to surplus a 2011 

Mercedes C-Class and a 9MM Glock Model 45 that were seized and awarded to the Abbeville 

Police Department.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

-08 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to approve the quote 

from DBT Transportation Services, LLC in the amount of $14,764.00 for the repair of the AWOS 

at the airport.  The balance of the CARES act funding will be used towards this expense.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

-09 introduced by Mr. Francis Plaisance and seconded by Ms. Roslyn White to surplus Unit #263, 

a Case 580SL diesel loader backhoe.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Gene Sellers, Engineer 

- We received a letter from DOTD.  They had a few comments for the Sidewalk project.  We 

are responding to them at this time and they expect to have that project let by the end on 

June 2022. 

- Abbeville’s application for the Water Sector program was missed only by 3 points.  They 

will have a second round but there are a lot of people who didn’t do it the first time so you 

will be back in the mix. 

 

Richard Primeaux, Engineer 

- His office does do federal grants and other grants.  He did look at some of the funding 

opportunities and there are some that may apply.  His office is currently researching the 

opportunities. 

 

Mayor Mark Piazza 

- We should be complete with both Sellers Field and Theriot Field by the end of the week.  

They turf is laid down and the sand has been applied at Sellers and they are in the process 

of doing that at Theriot.  Stewart should be almost finished at Sellers and moving on to 

Luquette.  He has already completed Theriot.  The street crew has been assisting with a 

30



4 
 

lot of dress work.  A lot of the concrete has been laid and most of the roofs and structures 

are finished.  The bleachers should be in any day.  Things are progressing very rapidly and 

very well.  We ran into a few problems with drainage but nothing that we didn’t expect.   

- He met with Councilwoman White, Anne Falgout and Charlene Beckett regarding Tiffany 

Plaza.  Tiffany Plaza has been purchased.  They met with the new owner.  He is from 

Houston.  He seems to have a great deal of financial backing and he is open to remodeling 

the Tiffany Plaza commercial complex.  We made suggestions about the parking lot and 

some of the buildings and he was very open to those.  He is open to working with 

businesses and individuals and wants to change some of the makeup of some of the 

buildings.  It was very exciting news.  He has made a substantial financial investment in 

this property and intends to continue to make a substantial financial investment into the 

property.  He wants to renovate it so he can start getting tenants there.  We threw out 

many suggestions that would benefit Abbeville like different types of businesses, activities, 

and things for the kids and he was open to all suggestions.  He was very thankful.  He will 

be working very closely with Anne Falgout and he will seek out any grant opportunities 

that may help him.  Councilwoman White added that he will also be here in our community 

actively participating.  He will have an active role here. 

- He also had a meeting with Don Benoit.  He owns D & T Crawfish by Maximart.  He has a 

very huge wholesale and commercial crawfish operation.  He has purchased the old Fruit 

of the Loom building.  He has big plans for that building.  He is negotiating with one major 

corporation.  He is encouraged and he believes they are very close to making a deal.  Anne 

Falgout has been working very closely with him.  He will do something with that building.  

That is encouraging news too. 

- There is an interested party in the old Stine Lumber building.  He is not at liberty to say 

who or what at this time but it was very encouraging.  If that deal goes through, people 

will be very surprised and excited to see what will happen with that building.   

 

Bill Spearman, Police Chief 

- In the last two weeks they have handled 320 calls. 

- We had 68 complaints and we removed 53 subjects.  That are all our loiters near 

McDonald’s and Burger King and Circle K.  95% of those were panhandlers.  The jail did 

refuse to keep them however.  We bring them back here and write a citation.  We keep 

them as long on the bench and book them in as long as we can.  That is all we can do. 

 

Jude Mire, Fire Chief 

- Discussed calls responded to and personnel.  All stations are ok.  The truck on the west 

side had to go to the shop because it had a leaking water tank but it was under warranty 

so they fixed it.  The truck on the By-pass is out right now.  It is in the shop being repaired.  

They had 211 calls since January 1, 2022.  There have been a lot of grass fires lately.  There 

is currently a burn ban.  Mayor Piazza asked if the sugarcane farmers are exempt from the 

burn ban.  Chief Jude stated only if they have been to the class and they were taught the 

proper way to burn.  They need to have the certificate from the State.  They can also ask 

for permission from the Fire Chief to burn.  Right now, he is not giving permission to 

anyone.   

- We have placed 30 of the smoke detectors and still have about 90 left.   

- He received a call last Monday that we will be getting our reimbursement for Hurricane 

Laura.  Mayor Piazza has allowed the fire department to go help Iowa after the hurricane.   

- Chief Kelly is going to the Rotary meeting tomorrow.  Last year they donated a boat to us 

and this time they may be giving us a rescue tool.  That is a $10,000 piece of equipment.  

It is the “jaws of life”. 

31



5 
 

- He applied for AFG grant for a brand-new aerial truck.  Theirs is 20 years old.  The grant is 

for $950,000 and a new aerial will cost about $1,200,000. 

 

Allie Horton, Digital Media Assistant 

- She has worked with the Nehemiah Project on the Black History Month Campaign.  She 

interviewed some former graduates of Herod on Friday to get personal stories on their 

education.  She highlighted black owned businesses last week.   

- She is starting to promote Sounds on the Square and the Black History Month exhibit at 

the Cultural Center. 

- She is starting to plan content for the month of March because that is when her baby is 

due.  That will be Women’s History Month so she is planning those posts so they will 

automatically post.  Councilwoman White stated that she could take over the posts for the 

month of March. 

- She is working with Mrs. Ann Hardy on the Municipal Civil Service Board page on the 

website and job postings.  She also got with Kathy at the Meridional and she will send a 

proof of the job posting. 

- We are having a lot of French tourists that are coming visiting the Tourist Center and 

groups are coming in to view the voting rights exhibit.   

 

Councilwoman Roslyn White 

- Tomorrow we will have the LDRC certification luncheon at the old Riverfront.  We were 

not able to make it open to the public because it is not big enough so we will have limited 

seating.  We sent out invitations to all the parties listed that we will need cooperation in 

order to execute the plan.  Once that is done, she and Allie will post the plan on the City’s 

website and share it on Facebook so that everyone will have access to it.  It will be an 

exciting day because we will have our final plan and will be able to start executing it.  We 

have a good list and 48 people have RSVP’d and they are any where’s from the State to 

Lafayette planning and all the local agencies here.  It should be a very good luncheon. 

 

Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. 

- When you are traveling eastbound into Downtown, on Highway 14, and you get to the 

Main Street light, and turn south on Main, there is not a turning lane there.  Our citizens 

are complaining because if you are parked at the light with your blinker on to turn right, 

cars are passing on the side of you to turn right (south on) on the shoulder.  That is not a 

turning lane and he would like Chris to talk to Randy with DOTD to see if they can do 

anything with this.  He asked Lieutenant Jonathan Touchet to explain this issue to the 

Police Chief.  It is not a turning lane and people are doing that and collisions and near 

collisions are occurring.  Citizens are asking for a solution for that.   

 

Councilwoman Terry Broussard 

- Williams Scholar Academy will have its first Spring Gala, Saturday, March 19, 2022 at 

Magdalen Place.  It will begin at 7:00 PM.  It includes a dinner, drinks, auctions and 

entertainment.  It is semi-formal.  If anyone is interested, please contact Nicole 

Desormeaux.  She has her phone number. 

 

Councilman Francis Plaisance 

- Discussed the dilapidated properties across from Popeye’s.  We have sent letters to these 

people but he does not what else we can do.  It is terrible and an awful sight.  These people 

do have a right to have a place to live but we need to try to do something. 

  

 

32



6 
 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Piazza declared this meeting adjourned. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVE: 

 

 

 

Kathleen S. Faulk    Mark Piazza 

Secretary-Treasurer    Mayor 

 

 

 

 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



RESOLUTION NO.: R-22-___ 

 

BE IT KNOWN AND REMEMBERED, that pursuant to a public notice, a 

regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Abbeville was held 

on the 15th day of March, 2022, commencing at 5:30 o’clock p.m. at City Hall, 

101 North State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, where the following resolution was 

moved, duly seconded, passed and adopted, to-wit: 
 

WHERE AS, the City of Abbeville and the Vermilion Parish Police Jury 

have determined that there are certain streets located within the City which are 

subject to overlapping jurisdiction and are in need of repairs, the cost of which is to 

be shared by the City and the Jury; 

 

WHERE AS, the City of Abbeville will proceed to let a contract for the 

public works project known and designated as “Improvements to Lorraine, Petain, 

Graceland, Thomas and West Oak Streets;” and 

 

WHERE AS, it is necessary and proper for the City and the Jury to enter 

into an Intergovernmental Agreement to establish the rights and responsibilities of 

each party to this project. 

 

NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Abbeville, 

acting as the governing authority of said city does hereby authorize Mayor Mark F. 

Piazza to execute said Intergovernmental Agreement and to do and perform all acts 

necessary in the premises. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 15th day of March, 2022.  

 

 

______________________________  ____________________________ 

Hon. Mark F. Piazza, Mayor   Mr. Francis J. Plaisance 
       Councilman at Large 

 

______________________________  ____________________________ 

Ms. Roslyn R. White    Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. 
Councilwoman District A    Mayor Pro-Tem/Councilman District B 

 

 

______________________________  ____________________________ 

Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr.    Ms. Terry Y. Broussard 
Councilman District C    Councilwoman District D 

71



 

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T E 

 

 

I, Kathleen S. Faulk, the duly qualified and appointed Clerk of the City of 

Abbeville, State of Louisiana, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing 

resolution was duly approved at the regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Abbeville held on March 15, 2022. 

 

THUS DONE AND SIGNED in Abbeville, Louisiana on this _____ day of 

March, 2022. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Kathleen S. Faulk, City Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 

 

 

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



Public Notice of Sale 
 

 

     Be it known to all:  that the City of Abbeville will have for sale, by public bid the following 

items, having been lawfully seized and forfeited.  The items will be sold to the highest bidder by 

sealed bid submitted to the City Council.  Said auction will be held at the regular meeting of the 

City Council located at 101 North State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, on March 15, 2022, 

beginning at 5:30 PM.  All bids should be submitted prior to 5:30 P.M. 

 

The item to be sold are as follows: 

 

 9MM Glock Model 45 

Serial number:  BNTW607 

Only Federal Firearm Licensed Dealers allowed to bid on pistol 

 

2011 Mercedes C-Class 

VIN:  WDDGF8BB4BR160123 

Color:  Blue 

Minimum Bid: $2,500.00 

 

     Items will be sold “as is”, with winning bidder assuming the items at his/her own risk.  

Further, the sale of the items, as evidenced by this notice, is made without reserving the right to 

make any claim whatsoever against the City or the City Council in warranty or redhibition for 

said pistol.  To get specific information about the items, please contact Lieutenant Todd O’Bryan 

with the Abbeville Police Department directly by calling 337-893-2511. All sales are final, the 

winning bidder shall tender that amount to the Police Chief’s office within five working days and 

before taking possession of the items.  All bidder(s) and the subsequent buyer is bound by the 

terms of the agreement set out herein.   

     Anyone interested in bidding on the items, or who submits a bid should attend this meeting.  

Bids should contain the following information:  The name, address and telephone number of the 

bidder; (a copy of the federal firearm license of the bidder for the pistol), the description of 

the item being bid upon; and the amount of the bid.  

     Bids must be received in a sealed envelope with the words “Sealed Bid”, the name of the 

bidder and the description of the item being bid upon written on the back of the envelope. The 

City of Abbeville reserves the right to reject any bid.  

     Employees of the City of Abbeville and their immediate family are prohibited from 

submitting bids. 

     If anyone so desires to submit a bid before the meeting, the bids may be submitted to Kathy 

Faulk at Abbeville City Hall, 101 North State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana 70510. 

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101


	Top
	1.	Police Department personnel
	1.	Minutes
	December 30, 2021 emergency special meeting
	December 30, 2021 special meeting
	February 18, 2022 special meeting
	02-01-22 personnel interviews
	02-15-22 personnel interviews
	January 4, 2022 regular meeting
	January 18, 2022 regular meeting
	February 1, 2022 regular meeting
	February 15, 2022 regular meeting

	2.	Bills
	February 2022 Check register

	1.	Chris Duhon Business venture
	2.	Pickleball
	Pickleball agreement

	3.	Amendment for boiler machinery coverage
	4.	Comeaux Park Renovation project
	Geosurfaces payment 4

	5.	IGA with VPPJ District A
	Lorraine St. et al

	6.	IGA with VPPJ Godchaux Street
	7.	Asphalt-Comeaux Park
	8.	609 N Gertrude Street-bid for abatement of rubbish
	BID RECEIVED FROM RUSSELL ALEXIS 030922

	9.	Liquor license Mirage of Abbeville
	10.	re-subdivision of property 1503 Maude
	Maude Ave resubdivision

	11.	Transformer for Felicity Substation
	8844-51- BTR- COAbbeville- Re-Manufactured Transformer Signed

	12.	Griner-Cypress Lift Station
	Griner Drilling Cypress lift station

	13.	Delta Fire-invoice for truck repair
	Delta Fire for repair to Joffre Station truck

	14.	Cascade System
	Quotes for new Cascade System

	15.	Golf cart
	Quote from Cajun Carts for 2019 Cushman Hauler Pro

	16.	Bids for Seized items
	Public Notice of Sale-Pistol and Mercedes 2-15-22

	17.	Report Basin #4
	18.	Purchase of fire hydrants
	Fire hydrant quote

	19.	Small bucket truck repair
	Small bucket truck repair

	20.	Sellers Lift Station
	Electrical panel for Sellers Lift Station

	21.	Lift station fence and gate repairs
	Lift station fence and gate repairs

	22.	Transformers
	Solomon Transformers

	1.	No old business
	Bottom

